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On March 3, 1839, Congress appropriated $20,000 for the
purpose of "erecting a suitable state house or public building
for the use of the territorial legislature." In the same
year the Florida Legislative Council passed an act_for the
erection of a new capitol. (Acts of Florida, lQZ9). Completed
by June, 1845, it housed the first session of the state legis-
lature. This was the third Capitol Building to be constr ad
in Tallahassee and it remains today as the nucleus of
present structure.

NE%
The Capitol of Florida is a three story buildind v&ﬁ&?
walls of the "best hard burnt brick." The exterior ﬁigb
building is stuccoed and painted white. The main £

the building faces east, and on this side is the lar
its two Doric porticos. A wide stair rises to the eéé.
portico. Six unfluted columns carry a cornice, entab*-ir
and pediment which are a combination of the Doric and T’ji
orders. A low balustrade surrounds the roof of the original
portion of the building at its outer edge. The entire entab-
lature of the east portico and its pediment and the projecting
cornice of the body of the building are of wood. Both

building and portico roofs are covered with slate. All windows
are double-hung sash. o~

G\s

v&

The Capitol Building is approximately 250 feet in length
by 215 in breadth. The basement has two wide halls crossing
each other at right angles. The second floor of The Capitol
has two halls, a north-south and an east-west, running the
full length and breadth of the building respectively. On this
floor are the offices of the Governor and his cabinet. The
north-south hall is lined withportraits of former governors
of Florida. The third floor of The Capitol contains the Senate
and House Chambers and the many committee rooms of the Florida
Legislature. ~

The height of T{e Capitol, not including the dome, is
approximately 80 feet. The dome is out one third the height
of The Capitol proper. Added in 1942 to replace the wooden
cupola, the dome is classic in detail™w There are recessed
niches in each of the four corners and three round arched
windows on each side are separated by:engaged Ionic columns.

A low balustrade surmounted by urns with finials surrounds
the dome at the point from which the ribs spring and a lantern
tops the entire structure.

The core of the present Capitol remained relatively
unchanged until 1902 when the building was repaired and enlargeq
The legislature appropriated $75,000 for the erection of the
north and south wings of the present building and the
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replacement of the cupola with the present dome. Since 1902,
there have been three further enlargements of the building. 1In
1321, the legislature appropriated $250,000 for the erection of
the present east and west wings. The architect for this work
was H. J. utho of Jacksonville, the designer of the original
Governor's Mansion in Tallahassee. \ In 1936 a new north wing was
added, and in 1946, a new south wing._  Presently under
construction are the legislative wings designed by Reyﬁblds,
Smith and Hill of Jacksonville. These four-story wings are of
pre-cast stone on a concrete frame and will be connected to The

Capitol Building by covered walkways.: -
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

1821, the provinces of East and West Florida combined to form
one territory with Andrew Jackson as its first governor.
Jackson was succeeded shortly thereafter by William P. Duval
and the government of the Territory of Florida was in the
hands of the Governor and a Legislative Council. Because
Pensacola and St. Augustine were the only two towns of any
importance in the territory and had each been the capltol of
a Spanish prov1nce, the first Legislative Council met in
Pensacola in 1822, while the second was held the next year in
St. Augustine. Due to the inconvenience of such an arrangement|,
the Legislative Council of 1823, authorized Governor DuVal
to appoint two commissioners to select a centrally located
site for the permanent capitol.

On March 24, 1824, Governor DuVal, having received and
approved the report of Commissioners Williams and Simmons on
the selection of a capitol site, issued a proclamation declaring
a seat of government to be "in the county of Gadsden, situated
about a mile southwest from the o0ld deserted fields of
Tallahassee, about a half mile south of the Oke-lock-o-ny and
Tallahasse, trail, at a point where the o0ld Spanish road is
intersected by a small trail running southwardly." Congress
approved the site and on May 24, 1824, Congress set aside
a grant of a quarter section of land for the use of the
territorial government. In obediance to Governor DuVal's
proclamation of March 24, the legislators met in the log cabin
capitol on the southeast corner of the present capitol grounds.
It was during this session, that the legislature passed an act
to provide for the laying out of the town, the construction
and financing of the first permanent capitol building and the
sale of Tallahassee lots. On December 11, 1824, the legis-
lative Council designated a town called Tallahassee and
proclaimed it the seat of government. The word "Tallahassee"
is of Creek Derivation, meaning literally "old town" but it is
frequently translated "old fields." Tallahassee was laid out
symmetrically with the Capitol Square at the center, and it
was incorporated on December 9, 1825.
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As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been
evaluated according to the c-iteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended

level of significanc this nomination is:
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Construction on the wooden Capitol Building which was to
replace the log structure began in 1826. One wing was finished
the following year, but a series of difficulties prevented
completion of the building as planned. The present Capitol
Building was begun in 1839 and completed in 1845. This building
was the scene of the Secession Convention of 1861, which withdrew
Florida from the Union and declared it to be an independent
nation. It also housed the Constitutional Conventions of 1865,
1868 and 1885, the last of which adopted the Constitution under
which the state is now governed. It was here, also, that the
Florida Canvassing Board counted in four Republican electors in
the disputed election of 1876, this assuring the election of
Rutherford B. Hayes as President of the United States.

Somewhat unusual is the fact that Florida's State Capitol
was not located in an already existing town. Rather the town
was planned around the Capitol which was designed as its first
building. - In spite of all the alterations to the building, its
center is still the old brick Capitol of 1845.
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